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To the Under Treasurer 
South Australian Government Financing Authority 
 
 
Opinion 
 
I have audited the financial report of the South Australian Government Financing Authority 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2023. 
 
In my opinion, the accompanying financial report gives a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the South Australian Government Financing Authority as at 30 June 2023, its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with relevant 
Treasurer’s Instructions issued under the provisions of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 
and Australian Accounting Standards. 
 
The financial report comprises: 

 a Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023 
 a Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2023 
 a Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2023 
 a Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2023 
 notes, comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory 

information 
 a Certificate from the Under Treasurer, the Chief Executive Officer (SAFA) and the 

Chief Financial Officer (SAFA). 
 
 
Basis for opinion 
 
I conducted the audit in accordance with the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 and 
Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report’ section of my 
report. I am independent of the South Australian Government Financing Authority. The 
Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 establishes the independence of the Auditor-General. In 
conducting the audit, the relevant ethical requirements of APES 110 Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) have been met. 
 

Government of South Australia 

Auditor-General's Department 



 

 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 
 
 

Responsibilities of the Under Treasurer for the financial report 
 
The Under Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true 
and fair view in accordance with relevant Treasurer’s Instructions issued under the provisions 
of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 and the Australian Accounting Standards, and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the 
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial report, the Under Treasurer is responsible for assessing the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the assessment indicates that 
it is not appropriate. 
 
 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report 
 
As required by section 31(1)(b) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 and section 25(2) 
of the Government Financing Authority Act 1982, I have audited the financial report of the 
South Australian Government Financing Authority for the financial year ended 30 June 2023. 
 
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this 
financial report. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control 

 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the South Australian Government 
Financing Authority’s internal control 



 

 

 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Under Treasurer 

 conclude on the appropriateness of the Under Treasurer’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion. My 
conclusion is based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause an entity to cease to continue as a 
going concern 

 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
My report refers only to the financial report described above and does not provide assurance 
over the integrity of electronic publication by the entity on any website nor does it provide an 
opinion on other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the report. 
 
I communicate with the Chief Executive Officer and Under Treasurer about, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during the audit. 
 
 
 
 
Andrew Richardson 
Auditor-General 
 
 
 

20 September 2023

https://auditsa.au1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAARMqLfdqU82tOoUMGlsgwkb5q-bOVPBgP
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Statement of Financial Position 
as at 30 June 2023 

Assets 

Cash and Short Term Assets 
Assets Held for Sale 
Investments 
Loans 
Derivatives Receivable 

Receivables and Other Assets 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
Intangible Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 
Bonds, Notes and Debentures 
Outstanding Claims 

Derivatives Payable 
Payables and Other Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

Equity 

Retained Earnings 

TOTAL EQUITY 

Total equity is attributable to the SA Government as owner. 

Contingent Assets and Liabilities 
Unrecognised Contractual Commitments 

S~ ~~ SouthAun-rallan 
Government 
Financing Authority 

Note 

4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 

12 
13 
14 
15 
16 

21 
26 

2022 
$m 

3,752.8 
5.1 

5,160.9 
31,428.4 

35.2 
75.0 

198.8 
1.2 

40,657.4 

12,716.2 
26,508.3 

605.4 
370.3 

57.9 

40,258.1 

399.3 

399.3 

399.3 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the year ended 30 June 2023 

Income 
Revenue 
Interest Revenue on assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
Less Interest Expense on liabilities measured at Fair Value through Profit or 
Loss 
Net Interest Revenue 

Insurance Premium 
Leasing and Hire 

Recoveries 

Other 

Total Revenue 

Other Gains/(Losses) 
Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments and Derivatives 
Net Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 

Total Other Gains/(Losses) 

Total Income 

Expenses 
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 

Insurance Claims 
Motor Vehicle 
Outwards Reinsurance 

Other Operating 

Total Expenses 

Profit before income tax equivalents 

Income Tax Equivalent Expense with SA Government 

Profit after income tax equivalents 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total comprehensive result 

StA ~~ South Austral/an 
Government 
Financing Authori ty 

Note 

17 

17 

17 
17 
17 
17 

18 
18 

19(a) 

19(a) 
19(a) 
19(a) 

19(a) 

19(b) 

2022 
$m 

742.0 

722.8 
19.2 

73.3 
51 .0 
(5.0) 
60.0 

198.5 

(16.3) 
11 .0 
(5.3) 

193.2 

20.4 
49.7 
10.1 
16.7 
22.2 

119.1 

74.1 

5.7 

68.4 

68.4 

The profit after income tax equivalents and total comprehensive result are attributable to the SA Government as owner. 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 30 June 2023 

Balance at 30 June 2021 

Profit after income tax equivalents for 2021-22 
Total Other Comprehensive Income for 2021-22 

Total comprehensive result for 2021-22 

Transactions with SA Government as owner 
Dividend paid 

Balance at 30 June 2022 

Profit after income tax equivalents for 2022-23 
Total Other Comprehensive Income for 2022-23 

Total comprehensive result for 2022-23 

Transactions with SA Government as owner 
Dividend paid 

Balance at 30 June 2023 

All changes in equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner. 

S~ ~~ South Austral/an 
Government 
Financing Authority 

Retained 
Earnings 

Sm 
382.2 

68.4 

68.4 

(51.3) 

399.3 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 30 June 2023 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Proceeds from : 

Interest on loans and investments 

Derivatives net interest 

Insurance Premiums 

Leasing and Motor Vehicle 

Recoveries 

Direct Insurance Placement 

Stamp duty received from agencies 

Program Funding 

Other receipts 

Commissions 

Guarantee Fees received from agencies 

Indemnity from Treasurer 

Payments for: 

Interest on borrowings and deposits 

Insurance Claims 

Motor Vehicle costs 

Outwards reinsurance premiums 

Direct Insurance Placement 

Stamp Duty paid to RevenueSA 

Operating expenses 

Other payments 

Guarantee Fees paid to Treasurer 

Net GST paid to the A TO 

Income Tax Equivalent (TER) from/(paid to) Treasurer 

Indemnity to Treasurer 

Net GST relating to Investing/Financing activities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Net advances of Client Loans 
Purchase of Investments 
Proceeds from Investments 

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 
Proceeds from the Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Net proceeds of Client and Bank Deposits 
Proceeds from Borrowings 
Repayments of Borrowings 
Net repayments of Swaps 
Dividends paid to Government 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held 

Cash at the beginning of the financial year 
Net effect of exchange rate changes 

Cash at the end of the financial year 

StA ~~ Soutl>Australlan 
Government 
Financing Autl>orlty 

Note 

23(b) 

23(a) 

2022 
$m 

850.4 

36.6 

79.2 

54.1 

23.6 

15.3 

6.7 

55.0 

518.4 

1.5 

118.0 

4.4 

(1,016.3) 

(90.3) 

(29.3) 

(18.2) 

(15.3) 

(6 .7) 

(25.5) 

(118.0) 

(7 .3) 

(35.4) 

(7.1) 

(1.7) 

392.1 

(2,720.2) 
(9,141 .6) 
7,462.5 

(61.2) 
44.0 

(4,416.5) 

189.5 
8,338.6 

(4,397.5) 
9.1 

(51.3) 

4,088.4 

64.0 

716.6 
(0.2) 

780.4 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2023 

Note 1 Objectives 

S~~~ 
SouthAustrallan 
Government 
Financing Authority 

The South Australian Government Financing Authority (SAFA) is a statutory authority of the Government of South 
Australia (SA Government) constituted as the Under Treasurer under the Government Financing Authority Act 1982. 
SAFA's registered address is Level 5, State Administration Centre, 200 Victoria Square, Adelaide, South Australia 5000. 

SAFA's business objectives are to: 

- achieve and maintain certainty of funding for South Australia in the most cost-effective manner and on-lend such 
funding to public sector entities; 

- ensure the efficient and effective delivery of a comprehensive range of funding , asset and liability management, and 
financial risk management advisory services that meet the needs of clients ; 

- provide comprehensive insurance protection for SA Government portfolio groups, agencies and all statutory authorities 
(except those specifically exempted by the Treasurer) at competitive and stable premiums; 

- protect the State's finances from a very large property loss or civil liability claim, or a series of large losses or claims 
in a particular year; 

- provide reinsurance to the private insurance market for South Australian building indemnity insurance risks; 

- manage SAFA's assets and liabilities and operational infrastructure and risks in a prudent manner to ensure SAFA's 
ongoing performance capability and financial viability; 

- provide fleet services to public sector entities including policy advice, vehicle leasing, maintenance, accident and fuel 
management, vehicle fit out and disposal preparation ; and 

- provide on behalf of the SA Government, comprehensive financial analysis and due diligence for new industry 
assistance applications, and also ongoing contract management of existing assistance contracts from continuing 
programs and one-off assistance packages. 

Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Statement of Compliance 

The Financial Statements are general purpose financial statements prepared in compliance with : 

- section 23 of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987; 

- Treasurer's Instructions and Accounting Policy Statements issued by the Treasurer under the Public Finance and 
Audit Act 1987; and 

- relevant Australian Accounting Standards. 

SAFA has applied Australian Accounting Standards that are applicable to for-profit entities, as it is a for-profit entity for 
financial reporting purposes. 

Australian Accounting Standards that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective, which have not 
been adopted by SAFA for the reporting period ending 30 June 2023, are detailed in Note 2(y). 

(b) Basis of Preparation 

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting policy statements issued pursuant to 
section 41 of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987, by authority of Treasurer's Instructions. As required by accounting 
policy statements, in the interest of public accountability and transparency, the notes to the Financial Statements include 
disclosure of expenses that are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, which have been incurred as a 
result of engaging consultants (refer Note 24). 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of fair value measurement of assets and liabilities except 
where otherwise indicated and are presented on a liquidity basis. 

The Financial Statements have been prepared based on a 12 month period and the presentation currency is Australian 
dollars. Unless otherwise stated, all values are presented in million dollars, rounded to one decimal place. Zero 
represents amounts less than fifty thousand dollars, whilst a dash represents a nil balance. 
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Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(c) Reporting Entity 

StA ~~ South Australian 
Government 
Financing Authority 

The financial report covers SAFA as an individual reporting entity. As SAFA does not have any controlled entities there 
are no consolidated financial statements. 

(d) Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions 

The preparation of the Financial Statements to conform with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires Management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying SAFA's 
accounting policies. Management has made the following estimates and judgements which have the most significant 
effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements: 

(i) Measurement of Outstanding Claims 

Outstanding insurance claims liabilities are calculated using statistical and/or mathematical methods. The calculations 
are made by an actuary on the basis of recognised actuarial methods, with due regard to relevant actuarial principles 
(refer Note 30). 

(ii) Measurement of Fair Value 

When measuring fair values of financial assets and liabilities, SAFA maximises the use of relevant market-based data. 
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities that are traded in active markets are determined with reference to 
quoted market prices or quotations. For financial assets and liabilities where market-based data is not readily available 
(or transparent), SAFA determines fair values using standard valuation techniques incorporating discounted cash flows 
on appropriate yield curves of similar traded securities, taking into account their risk characteristics. 

(e) Income and Expense Recognition 

SAFA recognises income and expenses when the amounts can be reliably measured, it is probable that the future 
economic benefits will flow to or from SAFA and when specific recognition criteria have been met for each of the activities 
described below. 

(i) Interest 

Interest revenue and expense is accrued in accordance with the terms and conditions of the underlying financial 
instrument. Premiums and discounts are amortised over the life of the associated investments and borrowings. 

Net realised gains or losses and unrealised gains or losses are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
(refer Note 18). 

(ii) Insurance Premium Revenue 

Premium revenue includes amounts charged to policy holders, excluding Stamp Duty and Goods and Services Tax 
(GST). Premium revenue is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as earned from the date of 
attachment of risk and is recognised evenly over the policy or indemnity period, which is considered to closely 
approximate the pattern of risks underwritten. 

All South Australian Government agencies are required to insure with SAFA unless exempted by the Treasurer. In 
those circumstances where SAFA considers it more appropriate for some of the risks of a government agency to be 
placed with other insurers, SAFA will arrange for such insurance and will recover the insurance premium from the 
agency concerned. For the purposes of the Financial Statements, these arrangements are referred to as Direct 
Insurance Placements and are recorded on a net basis. 

The Building Work Contractors Act 1995 (SA) and Regulations is compulsory in South Australia and requires builders 
to hold building indemnity insurance (BIi) to protect home owners against losses arising from the insolvency, death or 
disappearance of their builder up to a maximum sum insured of $150,000 per building project or such other amount 
prescribed under the Building Work Contractors Act 1995 (SA) . From 1 July 2013 SAFA began offering BIi cover to 
builders in South Australia. The premium for BIi provides insurance cover for periods of up to five years, commencing 
from the date of the insurance contract. 

Financial Statements 2022-23 8 I Page www.safa.sa.gov.au 



Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(e) Income and Expense Recognition (continued) 

(iii) Leasing and Hire Revenue 

S~ ~~ SoutllAust:rallan 
Government 
Financing Authority 

SAFA leases motor vehicles to South Australian Government agencies for a standard lease period of three years or 
60,000 kilometres , whichever occurs first. By arrangement, some vehicle leases can be extended to five years or 
100,000 kilometres, due to the nature of the lessee's business requirements. The lease to agencies covers registration , 
compulsory third party and property damage insurance, property insurance, scheduled servicing, depreciation, interest 
costs and a management fee. Leasing revenue is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. Any 
lease penalty income is recognised as an event occurs that establishes SAFA's right to collectability. The property 
insurance component of the lease is recognised under Insurance Premium in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
(refer Note 17). 

SAFA also hires motor vehicles to South Australian Government agencies on a short-term basis, which is charged to 
agencies at hourly rates . Hire rates cover all vehicle running costs, including fuel. 

(iv) Revenue Recoveries 

Vehicle recoveries include excessive wear and tear costs , which are recovered from agencies at the end of the lease. 

Insurance recoveries comprise any recoveries from third parties. Recoveries receivable on paid claims, reported 
claims not yet paid, claims incurred but not reported and unexpired risk liabilities are recognised as revenue. 

(v) Other Income 

Fee income in respect of services provided is recognised in the period in which the service is provided or commission 
is received on disposal of vehicles . 

(vi) Insurance Claims Expense 

Insurance claims expense includes the direct and indirect costs of settling claims, claim payments, deductible receipts 
and movements in underlying claim estimates. 

(vii) Motor Vehicle Expenses 

Motor vehicle expenses represent direct costs associated with the ownership of the motor vehicle fleet including 
registration, compulsory third party insurance, scheduled servicing costs and costs of repairing vehicles in preparation 
for disposal. 

Third party suppliers provide fuel and unscheduled vehicle maintenance services to SA Government Agency motor 
vehicle lessees for the duration of motor vehicle leases. Agencies control their consumption of these goods and 
services, and reimburse SAFA for the full amount of any costs incurred. In these cases, SAFA is acting as an agent, 
and consequently fuel expenses and unscheduled maintenance expenses are recorded net of any recoveries from 
Agencies. 

(viii) Outwards Reinsurance 

Premiums ceded to reinsurers are recognised as an expense in accordance with the pattern of reinsurance services 
received. Accordingly, a portion of the outwards reinsurance premiums may be treated at the end of the reporting 
period as a prepayment. This program includes the catastrophe reinsurance program which has been effected to 
safeguard the State 's finances against very large losses or claims, or a series of large losses or claims in any year 
under the Government's insurance and risk management arrangements. 

(ix) Indemnity from/(to) the Treasurer 

Insurance activities are segregated into four Funds. The Treasurer has indemnified SAFA for any operating profit or 
loss before tax for any activities relating to Fund 2 and Fund 3 (refer Note 21(b)) . Under these arrangements any 
profit/loss on these Funds are recognised as payables to/receivables from the Treasurer. 
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S~~~ 
Soutl>Australlan 
Govermnent 

. Financing Authority 

Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(f) Cash and Short Term Assets 

Cash and short term assets in the Statement of Financial Position include Cash at Bank, Short Term Money Market 
Deposits, Secured Cash Lending, Overdraft Facilities and Negotiable Certificates of Deposit that are held for liquidity and 
short term investment purposes (refer Note 4). 

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash consists of Cash and Collateral Deposits from Financial 
Institutions, Secured Cash Lending and Short Term Money Market Deposits as defined above, but exclude Negotiable 
Certificates of Deposit and the Overdraft Facility where the securities are for investment purposes and not for the purpose 
of meeting short term cash commitments. 

(g) Assets Held for Sale 

Assets are classified as held for sale, and stated at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, if 
their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This 
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset's sale is expected to be completed within 
one year from the date of classification (refer Note 5). 

(h) Financial Instruments 

All financial assets and liabilities, on recognition, are designated at fair value through profit or loss. This designation is 
determined on the basis that SAFA manages and evaluates the performance of its financial assets and liabilities on a fair 
value basis in accordance with documented risk management strategies. 

Financial assets and liabilities (including derivatives) are recorded at fair value in the Statement of Financial Position. All 
financial assets and liabilities are revalued to reflect market movements with gains or losses, whether realised or 
unrealised, being recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (refer Note 18). Financial assets 
and liabilities are revalued regularly either at their quoted market price, or their cash flows are discounted against the 
relevant yield curve. 

(i) Investments 

Investments are assets which are purchased as part of SAFA's liquidity and interest rate risk management and may 
be sold prior to maturity in response to various factors including changes in interest rates and funding requirements of 
the South Australian public sector. Additionally, SAFA may hold investments it has purchased at the direction of the 
South Australian Government and/or as may be determined by the Treasurer to be in the interests of the State of South 
Australia (refer Note 6) . 

(ii) Loans 

Loans to government and non-government clients comprise of simple interest, fixed interest or floating rate (refer 
Note 7). 

(iii) Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings include At Call Deposits, Collateral Deposits from Financial Institutions and Term 
Deposits. SAFA also raises short term funds through the issue of Commercial Paper both in the domestic and overseas 
markets (refer Note 12). 

(iv) Repurchase Agreements 

Securities sold under an agreement to repurchase remain as an investment whilst the obligation to repurchase is 
recorded as a liability, being Secured Borrowings (refer Note 12). 

Securities purchased under an agreement to resell are not recognised as financial assets as SAFA is not substantially 
exposed to the risks and rewards of the securities. The repurchase agreement is recognised as a financial asset, 
being Secured Cash Lending (refer Note 4), as the obligation to resell remains. 

(v) Bonds, Notes and Debentures 

Funds are raised through various instruments including bonds, notes and debentures. All borrowings are raised on an 
unsecured basis (refer Note 13). 
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Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(h) Financial Instruments (continued) 

(vi) Derivative Instruments 

S~ ~~ SoutllAustral/an 
Government 
Financing Aulllorlty 

SAFA utilises derivative instruments (including futures, foreign exchange contracts, forward rate arrangements, foreign 
exchange swaps and interest rate swaps) in fundraising, debt management and client activities. Derivative instruments 
are used to convert funding costs, facilitate diversification of funding sources, reconfigure interest rate risk profiles and 
manage foreign currency exposures. Interest receipts and interest payments are accrued on a gross basis and 
classified as interest revenue and interest expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (refer Notes 8 and 15). 

(i) Assets Backing General Insurance Liabilities 

Assets which back SAFA's insurance liabilities are those generated through premium revenue. These assets are invested 
to reflect the nature of the policy liabilities, and are comprised of operating cash, cash held on deposit and units invested 
with Funds SA (refer Notes 4 and 6). In accordance with AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts, SAFA's longer-term 
insurance investments with Funds SA are measured at fair value, based on quoted market prices as advised by the fund 
manager. Subsequent measurement is at fair value with any resultant unrealised gains or losses recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income (refer Note 18). 

(j) Reinsurance and Other Recoveries 

Recoveries receivable on paid claims, reported claims not yet paid, claims incurred but not reported and unexpired risk 
liabilities are recognised as revenue. Recoveries receivable are measured as the present value of the expected future 
receipts, calculated on the same basis as the liability for outstanding claims. The details of inflation and discount rates 
used are set out in Note 30. 

Collectability of recoveries is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 

(k) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment comprises owned and right-of-use (leased) tangible assets and is initially measured at 
cost. Short-term leases of 12 months or less and low value leases where the underlying asset value is less than $15,000 
are not recognised as right-of-use assets. The associated lease payments are recognised as an expense and are 
disclosed in Note 19(a). 

(i) Depreciation 

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using rates designated to allocate 
the depreciable cost over the expected useful life of the asset. Motor Vehicles are depreciated on a straight line basis 
for a period of up to five years. There may be exceptions to this period for a small number of specific vehicles where 
a longer period of up to ten years is deemed appropriate by management (refer Note 10). 

Asset residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, during each 
financial year. Changes in the residual value or expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for prospectively by changing the time period or method, as 
appropriate, which is a change in accounting estimate. 

(ii) Revaluation 

After recognition, items of Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at a revalued amount, being fair value at the date 
of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. 

Revaluation is undertaken on a regular cycle. If at any time management considers that the carrying amount of an 
asset materially differs from its fair value, then the asset will be revalued regardless of when the last valuation took 
place. AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants, in the principal or most advantageous 
market, at the measurement date. 
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Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(I) Intangible Assets 

S~ ~~ SoulhAustralfan 
Government 
Financing Authority 

Intangible assets represent software licenses, which are carried at the cost to acquire and install the specific software less 
any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

Expenditure on software assets is capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the assets 
will flow to SAFA, and if the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditure on the maintenance of 
software is expensed as incurred. 

(i) Amortisation 

Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated on a straight line basis using rates designated to allocate the cost over 
the expected useful life of the asset. Software costs are amortised on a straight line basis for a period of five to ten 
years (refer Note 11 ). Amortisation has been included in Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment expense within 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Asset residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, each financial 
year. Where a change to the residual value or useful life of an asset has been identified , any impact that may result 
from this change is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which it arises. 

(ii) Impairment 

Intangible Assets have not been assessed for impairment as they are non-cash generating assets, that are specialised 
in nature and held for continual use of their service capacity. 

(m) Outstanding Claims Liability 

Insurance activities are segregated into four Funds. Liabilities for outstanding claims for Fund 1 are measured as the 
central estimate of the present value of the expected future payments for claims incurred, plus an additional risk margin 
to allow for inherent uncertainty in the central estimate. 

The liability for outstanding claims at balance date comprises: 

- claims that have been incurred but not paid; 

- claims incurred but not reported {IBNR); 

- claims incurred but not enough reported (IBNER); 

- risk margins; and 

- claims handling costs, which includes anticipated direct and indirect costs of settling those claims. 

Liabilities for outstanding claims for Fund 2 are recognised in respect of reported incidents including the anticipated costs 
of settling these claims and a risk margin. Details of risk margin rates are disclosed in Note 30. 

Liabilities for outstanding claims for Fund 3 are determined by applying an earning pattern to the written premium and 
then combining a loss ratio to the development pattern of emerging claims costs. Details of risk margin rates are disclosed 
in Note 30. 

Liabilities for outstanding claims for Fund 4 are recognised in respect of estimated reported incidents including the 
anticipated costs of settling these claims. 

The expected future payments are discounted to present value using a risk-free rate, derived from the interest rates on 
Commonwealth Government fixed interest securities with terms to maturity that match, as close as possible, the estimated 
future claim payments. Details of the inflation and discount rates and other actuarial assumptions are disclosed in Note 30. 
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Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(n) Receivables and Other Assets/Payables and Other Liabilities 

S~ ~~ SoulftAustrallan 
Government 
Flnandng Authority 

Receivables include amounts receivable from the provision of goods and services, GST input tax credits recoverable, 
other assets including debtors and fee accruals. Payables include accounts payable representing amounts owing for 
goods and services received prior to the end of the reporting period that are unpaid, GST payable, other liabilities including 
interest paid in advance, creditors, expense accruals and provisions. They are stated at book value, which is the best 
estimate of fair value as they are typically settled within a short period of time (refer Notes 9 and 16). 

A provision for lifetime expected credit losses is made based on a simplified matrix approach, for all receivables from 
entities that are external to government. No credit loss provision is made for receivables from State, Territory, and 
Commonwealth Government entities due to the low credit risk of these entities (refer Note 28(a)(i)). 

Receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable 
expectation of recovery include the failure of a debtor to enter into a payment plan with SAFA and a failure to make 
contractual payments for a period of greater than 90 days past due (default). Receivables written off during the year are 
still subject to enforcement activity. 

Lease liabilities are reported as part of Payables and Other Liabilities (refer Note 16) and are recognised in relation to 
right-of-use assets. These liabilities are initially measured as the present value of the remaining leases payments 
discounted using the relevant incremental borrowing rate published by the Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF). 
Lease liabilities are subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the liabilities, reducing 
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and, if applicable, remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any 
reassessment (such as a change to the lease term) or lease modifications. The interest on lease liabilities is recognised 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the lease term . 

(o) Guarantees 

(i) Financial Guarantee Contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is 
initially measured at fair value and then subsequently at the higher of: 

- the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit loss model under AASB 9 Financial Instruments; and 

- the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance 
with the principles of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. 

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the present value of the difference in cash flows between 
the contractual payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the 
guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations. 

(ii) SA Government Guarantee Fees 

Loans advanced by SAFA to government agencies are guaranteed by the SA Government. In return for this guarantee 
a market based fee is due by the individual government agencies to the Treasurer. These fees are not revenue or 
expenses of SAFA. SAFA acts as agent for the Treasurer and collects these fees from the government agencies and 
remits them to the Treasurer on a periodic basis. Due to timing differences between the collection of these fees from 
the government agencies and remittance of these fees to the Treasurer, SAFA recognises receivables and payables 
in relation to these fees (refer Notes 9 and 16). 

(p) Dividends 

Under governing legislation and SAFA policy, dividends are payable by SAFA to the Treasurer on an annual basis 
dependent on a range of factors including SAFA's profitability and the solvency of the insurance business. Where a 
dividend is payable, an interim dividend is required to be paid prior to the end of the financial year based on estimates of 
the full financial year profit. The final dividend due is determined following finalisation of the financial year results, with 
any difference between the interim dividend payment and the final dividend due either deducted from, or added to, the 
interim dividend payment for the following financial year. The payment of dividends is subject to the approval of the 
Treasurer. The Treasurer has exempted from SAFA's dividend policy, all Program Funding transactions related to the 
current financial assistance Funds that SAFA is managing on behalf of the SA Government (refer Notes 2(w) and 21(c)). 

Financial Statements 2022-23 131 Page www.safa.sa.gov.au 



Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(q) Deferred Acquisition Costs 

StA F,.~ 
South Austral/an 
Government 
Financing Authority 

Costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the Bil premium revenue (Fund 3) are deferred by recognising these costs 
as an asset in the Statement of Financial Position when they can be reliably measured. Deferred acquisition costs are 
amortised systematically over the life of the insurance policy in line with the expected pattern of the incidence of risk. 

(r) Unearned Premium Liability 

The Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) is performed on the BIi iiabiiities less deferred acquisition costs to ensure the carrying 
value of the unearned premium liability is adequate, using current estimates of the present value of future cash flows 
relating to future claims. 

The need for an additional risk margin is assessed, taking into account the inherent uncertainty in the central claims 
estimate. If the assessment shows the carrying amount of the liabilities is inadequate, any deficiency is recognised as an 
expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income by firstly writing down the deferred acquisition cost. If an additional 
liability is required, this is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as an unexpired risk liability. 

(s) Foreign Currency Translation 

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are recognised in the Financial Statements at the prevailing exchange rate at the 
reporting date. Revenue and expense items are translated at the exchange rate current at the date at which those items 
were recognised in the Financial Statements. 

(t) Employee Benefits 

SAFA does not employ any direct staff, rather it is assigned staff resources by DTF through a Service Level Agreement 
pursuant to Section 20 of the Government Financing Authority Act 1982. The responsibility to provide for employer 
contributions to superannuation benefits rests with DTF, and for this reason SAFA is not required to establish a provision. 
DTF meets long service leave liabilities as they fall due. 

(u) Taxation 

(i) Accounting Profits Tax Model 

In accordance with Treasurer's Instruction 22 Tax Equivalent Payments, SAFA is required to pay the Treasurer an 
income tax equivalent amount. The income tax liability is based on the Taxation Equivalent Regime (TER) which 
applies the accounting profits method. This requires SAFA to apply the corporate income tax rate to the net profit. The 
current income tax equivalent liability or asset relates to the income tax expense outstanding for the current period. 
Under the TER, no deferred tax asset is applicable when losses have been incurred. The Treasurer has exempted 
from the application of the TER, all Program Funding transactions related to the current financial assistance Funds that 
SAFA is managing on behalf of the SA Government (refer Notes 2(w) and 21 (c)). 

(ii) Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

SAFA is grouped with DTF for GST purposes. Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of 
GST, except: 

- when the GST incurred on a purchase of goods or services is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office 
(ATO), in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of the expense 
item; and 

- receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable to the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables in the 
Statement of Financial Position. 

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising 
from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is classified as part of 
operating cash flows. 

(iii) Stamp Duty 

Stamp Duty collected as part of insurance premiums is excluded from premium revenue and paid monthly to 
Revenue SA. 
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Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(v) Supplementary Information by Line of Business 

S~ F,.~ 
Soutl>Australlan 
Government 
FlnancJng Authority 

SAFA is an individual reporting entity which operates in three core lines of business, Treasury, Insurance and Fleet 
Management (refer Note 3). 

(w) Program Funding 

Funding received for financial assistance programs that SAFA manages on behalf of the SA Government is recognised 
as income. A liability for a payment of program funding monies is only recognised where there is a present obligation to 
make a payment to an entity that is: 

- external to the SA Government, where that payment has been approved under the terms of the program; or 

- internal to the SA Government, such as at the conclusion of the program and if SAFA is then required to return any 
surplus monies to the SA Government. 

Until a present obligation to make a Program Funding related payment exists, the potential outlays are disclosed as 
contingent liabilities (refer Note 21(c)) . 

(x) Comparatives 

The presentation and classification of items in the Financial Statements are consistent with prior periods except where 
specific accounting standards and/or accounting policy statements have required a change. 

On the initial adoption of a new or amended accounting standard, the application to the comparative period information 
only occurs where: 

- it is required by the new or amended accounting standard; or 

- it is not required by, but is permitted by the new or amended accounting standard, and the application to the 
comparative information is approved by the Under Treasurer. 

In all other cases, where presentation or classification of items in the Financial Statements have been amended, 
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation or classification in these Financial 
Statements unless impractical. 

(y) Changes in Accounting Policies 

SAFA has not adopted any new accounting standards or amendments to standards, applicable to annual reporting periods 
commencing on or after 1 January 2022. 

The following accounting standard has been issued and is not yet effective. This accounting standard has not been early 
adopted by SAFA, although it is likely it will be relevant upon application. 

AASB 17 Insurance Contracts (AASB 17) 

AASB 17 establishes principles for the recognition , measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts 
issued. It also requires similar principles to be applied to reinsurance contracts held and investment contracts issued 
with discretionary participation features. The objective is to ensure that entities provide relevant information in a way 
that faithfully represents those contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess 
the effect that contracts within the scope of AASB 17 have on the financial position, financial performance and cash 
flows of the entity. 

In December 2022 the AASB published AASB 2022-9: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Insurance 
Contracts in the Public Sector. This states that AASB 17 for public sector entities applies to annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2026. SAFA is still assessing the approach to this standard. 

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on SAFA in 
the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions. 
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Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(z) Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic 

StA ~~ South Australian 
Government 
Financing Authority 

SAFA's insurance liabilities have been materially impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic in recent years . 

The Business Interruption short tail insurance, provided via Fund 1, has been the most significantly impacted. The 
Regulatory Order Extension, which covered the closure of a number of government and agency establishments in 
March 2020 due to COVID-19, resulted in SAFA receiving significant business interruption claims from various 
government agencies. These claims were not subject to SAFA's reinsurance arrangements and hence the cost has been 
fully borne by SAFA. Most of the business interruption claims were settled in previous financial years, with those 
outstanding at the end of the last financial year having been settled during the current financial year. With effect from 
1 July 2022, SAFA only provides cover when business closure is triggered by the presence of disease on the premises of 
the insured entity. 

The Building Indemnity long tail insurance, provided via Fund 3, has also been significantly impacted as a result of 
COVID-19. The economic stimulus provided during the pandemic has resulted in a surge in building activity across the 
nation, including South Australia. However, there is growing evidence of financial pressure on builders, due to escalating 
costs of building materials, supply shortages and increased labour cost factors. Given the fixed price nature of many 
building contracts, these higher costs cannot be passed on to consumers and so must be absorbed by the builders. These 
financial pressures have contributed to increased numbers of builder insolvencies in the eastern states of Australia in 
recent years. To date, South Australia has not experienced a similar increase in the number of builder insolvencies. 

Despite a very favourable claims experience for Fund 3 during both the current and prior financial years, there remains a 
heightened risk of builder insolvencies over the short to medium term. A cautious approach to the liability assessment 
continues to be adopted, with the evolving liability experience being closely monitored by SAFA. As the Treasurer has 
indemnified SAFA for any profit or loss arising from the Fund 3 Building Insurance activities (refer Note 2(e)(ix)), any 
surplus or shortfall in the liabilities for the Fund will not ultimately-impact SAFA's profit. 

Note 30 provides a summary of actuarial assumptions and methods used in the determination of outstanding claims 
liabilities and Note 28(d)(iv) provides a sensitivity analysis of the impact of changes in the key actuarial assumptions used 
in the valuation of outstanding claims liabilities. 
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Note 3 Supplementary Information by Line of Business 

SAFA operates in the following lines of business: 

S~ ~~ South Australian 
Government 
Financing Authority 

Treasury - provides funds and financial advice to the South Australian Government, Semi-Government Authorities, 
South Australian Public Sector Financial Institutions and Government agencies. 

Fleet - provides comprehensive fleet management services to South Australian Government agencies for its 
passenger and light commercial motor vehicle fleet. 

Insurance - underwriting several types of general insurance for South Australian Government agencies. 

Program Funding income and expenditure transactions for financial assistance programs that SAFA manages on 
behalf of the SA Government are allocated to the Treasury business. 

The Insurance activities are designated into four Funds. Fund 1 reflects the normal commercial activities of SAFA. 
Fund 2 includes all the activities previously conducted through Section 2 of the South Australian Government 
Insurance and Risk Management Fund. This Fund is used to fund liabilities arising from insurable incidents that 
occurred prior to 1 July 1994, claims under the building warranty indemnity reinsurance arrangement with QBE 
Insurance (Australia) Limited (QBE) until 30 June 2013, SGIC residual claims and workers compensation claims 
previously managed by South Australian Asset Management Corporation . Fund 3 is used to fund liabilities arising 
from claims under the building indemnity insurance scheme effective from 1 July 2013. Fund 4 is used to fund 
liabilities for the South Australian Government's participation in the National Redress Scheme. 

2023 

Income 
Expenses 
Profit before income tax equivalents 
Income tax equivalent expense 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Comprehensive result 

Business Line assets 
Business Line liabilities 

Net Assets 

2022 

Income 
Expenses 
Profit before income tax equivalents 
Income tax equivalent expense 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Comprehensive result 

Business Line assets 
Business Line liabilities 

Net Assets 

Financial Statements 2022-23 

Treasury Insurance 
$m $m 

91 .8 35.9 
17.0 70.4 
74.8 (34.5) 

6.0 (10.4) 

68.8 (24.1) 

39,950.0 792.6 
(39,755.3) (643.5) 

194.7 149.1 

171 Page 

Fleet Eliminations Total 
$m $m $m 

69.4 (3.9) 193.2 
35.6 (3.9) 119.1 
33.8 74.1 
10.1 5.7 

23.7 68.4 

215.8 (301.0) 40,657.4 
(160.3) 301.0 (40,258.1) 

55.5 399.3 
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Note 4 Cash and Short Term Assets 

Cash at Bank 

Short Term Money Market Deposits 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 
Overdraft Facility 
Overdraft Facility - South Australian Government 

Total Cash and Short Term Assets 

Note 5 Assets Held for Sale 

Motor Vehicles 

Total Assets Held for Sale 

Note 6 Investments 

Commonwealth Government Securities 
Semi-Government Securities 
Bank and Corporate Securities 
Units in Unlisted Trusts - Funds SA 
Equity Investments 
Investments in Private Companies 

Total Investments 

Note 7 Loans 

Loans to the Treasurer at Market Rates 
Loans to the Treasurer at Non Market Rates 
Loans to the Treasurer at Cost of Funds (COF) 
Loans to the Treasurer at Cash 
Loans to Public Non Financial Corporations 
Loans to Public Financial Corporations 
Loans to Local Government Financing Authority 
Loans to Non Government Schools 

Total Loans 

StA ~~ South Austral/an 
Government 
financing Authority 

2022 
$m 

780.9 

2,604.5 
82.2 

285.2 

3,752.8 

2022 
$m 

5.1 

5.1 

2022 
$m 

1,257.1 
3,190.3 

695.9 
0.0 

17.6 

5,160.9 

2022 
$m 

341.4 
9.5 

12,171.3 
9,495.9 
7,468.5 
1,763.6 

100.3 
77.9 

31,428.4 

The COF loan to the Treasurer is funded through a range of financial assets and liabilities within the Treasurer's Portfolio. 
Any gains or losses, whether realised or unrealised, on the assets and liabilities in the Treasurer's Portfolio that fund the 
loan are equally matched by a gain or loss on the COF loan to the Treasurer. 
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Note 8 Derivatives Receivable 

Foreign Currency Swaps 
Interest Rate Swaps - South Australian Government 
Interest Rate Swaps 

Total Derivatives Receivable 

Note 9 Receivables and Other Assets 

Receivables 

Receivables - South Australian Government 

Recoveries 
Less: Allowance for impairment 
Receivables from the Treasurer 
Prepayments - South Australian Government 
Prepayments 
Sundry Debtors 
Sundry Debtors - South Australian Government 
Income Tax Equivalent 
Deferred Acquisition Costs 

Total Receivables and Other Assets 

Movement in the allowance for impairment loss 

Carrying amount at the beginning of the period 
Increase in Allowance for doubtful debts 
Amounts written off 
Amounts recovered during the period 

Carrying amount at the end of the period 

Note 10 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Motor Vehicles 
At Fair value 

Accumulated depreciation 
Total Motor Vehicles 

Right-of-Use Motor Vehicles 
At Cost 
Accumulated depreciation 
Total Right-of-Use Motor Vehicles 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 

Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment 

Motor Vehicles 
Carrying amount at the beginning of the period 

Additions 

Assets classified as held for sale 
Disposals 

Depreciation expense 
Carrying amount at the end of the period 
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S~ ~~ South Austral/an 
Government 
Financing Authority 

2022 
$m 

0.2 
35 .0 

35.2 

2022 
$m 

4.6 

26.9 

25 .9 
(0.4) 
2.3 
2.0 
6.3 
0.7 
0.1 
6.6 

75.0 

2022 
$m 

(0.3) 
(0.1) 
0.0 
0.0 

(0.4) 

2022 
$m 

254.7 

(55.9) 
198.8 

198.8 

2022 
$m 

189.9 

61 .0 

(5.1) 
(27.0) 
(20.0) 
198.8 
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Note 10 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 

Right-of-Use Motor Vehicles 

Carrying amount at the beginning of the period 

Disposals 

Depreciation expense 
Carrying amount at the end of the period 

Total Carrying amount at the end of the period 

Note 11 Intangible Assets 

Software Purchased 
At cost 
Accumulated amortisation 

Total Intangible Assets 

Reconciliation of Software Purchased 

Carrying amount at the beginning of the period 

Amortisation expense 
Carrying amount at the end of the period 

Note 12 Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 

At Call Deposits 
At Call Deposits - South Australian Government agencies 
At Call Deposits - Treasurer 
Secured Borrowings 
Commercial Paper 

Total Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 

Note 13 Bonds, Notes and Debentures 

Floating Rate Notes 
Select Lines 
Retail Stock 
Obligation to the Commonwealth Government 

Total Bonds, Notes and Debentures 
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StA ~~ SouthAustraf/an 
Government 
Financing AutllorilY 

2022 
$m 

0.1 
(0.1) 

0.0 

198.8 

2022 
$m 

4.3 
(3 .1) 

1.2 

2022 
$m 

1.6 

0.4 
1.2 

2022 
$m 

27.7 
377.6 

9,751.8 
198.9 

2,360.2 

12,716.2 

2022 
$m 

2,857.1 
23,353.0 

112.8 
185.4 

26,508.3 
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Note 14 Outstanding Claims 

Outstanding Claims - South Australian Government 
Outstanding Claims 

Total Outstanding Claims 

Reconciliation of Movements in Outstanding Claims 

2022 Balance 
Paid 
Reported Claims 
IBNR/IBNER Reserve 
Risk Margin 
Indirect Claims Settlement Reserve 

2023 Balance 

30 June 2023 Outstanding Claims balance by: 
Fund 1 
Fund 2 
Fund 3 
Fund 4 

Note 15 Derivatives Payable 

Interest Rate Swaps - South Australian Government 
Interest Rate Swaps 

Total Derivatives Payable 

Note 16 Payables and Other Liabilities 

Sundry Creditors - South Australian Government 
Sundry Creditors 
Payables 
Payables - South Australian Government 
Payables to the Treasurer 
Contract Liability 
Income Tax Equivalent 

Total Payables and Other Liabilities 
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S~~~ 
SauthAustrallan 
Government 
Financing Authority 

2022 
$m 

84.9 
520.5 

605.4 

2022 
$m 

22.8 
347.5 

370.3 

2022 
$m 

0.0 
5.4 
5.4 
9.4 
8.7 

29.0 

57.9 
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Note 17 Revenue 

Interest Revenue on assets measured at Fair Value through 
Profit or Loss 

External to South Australian Government: 

Cash and Short Term Assets 
Investments 
Loans 
Receivables and Other Assets 

Internal to South Australian Government: 

Cash and Short Term Assets 
Loans 
Receivables and Other Assets 

Less Interest Expense on liabilities measured at Fair Value 
through Profit or Loss 

External to South Australian Government: 

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 
Bonds, Notes and Debentures 
Payables and Other Liabilities 

Internal to South Australian Government: 

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 
Payables and Other Liabilities 

Net Interest Revenue at FVTPL 

Insurance Premium 

External to South Australian Government 
Internal to South Australian Government 

Leasing and Hire 

Internal to South Australian Government 

Recoveries 

External to South Australian Government 
Internal to South Australian Government 

Other 

External to South Australian Government: 
Other Revenue 
Commissions 

Internal to South Australian Government: 
Other Revenue 
Program Funding Revenue 
Management Fees 
Guarantee Fees 

Total Revenue 
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Note 

20 

St.A~~ South Australian 
Government 
Financing Authority 

2022 
$m 

8.4 
30.4 
2.7 

151 .9 

11.0 
534.3 

3.3 
742.0 

4.0 
581 .2 
120.0 

17.1 
0.5 

722.8 

19.2 

15.8 
57.5 
73.3 

51.0 
51.0 

(6.7) 

1.7 
(5.0) 

1.2 
1.8 

0.1 
55.0 

1.9 
0.0 

60.0 

198.5 
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Note 18 Other Gains/(Losses) 

Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments and Derivatives 
External to South Australian Government: 

Realised 
Unrealised 

Internal to South Australian Government: 

Realised 
Unrealised 

Net Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 
External to South Australian Government 

Total Other Gains 

Note 19 Expenses 

(a) Operating Expenses 

Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 
Internal to South Australian Government 

Insurance Claims 
External to South Australian Government 
Internal to South Australian Government 

Motor Vehicle 
External to South Australian Government 
Internal to South Australian Government 

Outwards Reinsurance 
External to South Australian Government 

Other Operating 
External to South Australian Government: 

Program and Debt Management fees 

Direct Insurance Placement costs 
Impairment Loss 
Management Fees/Deferred Acquisition Costs 
Consultants/Contractors 
Operating Leases 
Systems 
Other 

Internal to South Australian Government: 

Indemnity to the Treasurer 
Service Level Agreement 

Total Expenses 

Note 

20 

20 

24 

S~ ~~ Soutr,Australlan 
Government 
Financing Authority 

2022 
$m 

334.1 
3,065.8 

(324.0) 
(3,092.2) 

(16.3) 

11.0 
11.0 

(5.3) 

2022 
$m 

20.4 
20.4 

41.1 
8.6 

49.7 

23.6 

13.5 
10.1 

16.7 
16.7 

2.5 

0.1 
0.1 
5.7 
0.5 
0.9 
1.0 

(7.0) 

6.4 
12.0 
22.2 

119.1 

A Service Level Agreement (SLA) operates between SAFA and DTF. DTF provides services to SAFA to enable SAFA to 
undertake its business activities in a manner so that SAFA may achieve its key outcomes. DTF provides SAFA with 
appropriately trained and skilled staff along with infrastructure support. The majority of the fee covers staffing, 
accommodation, audit and technology expenditure. 

SLA costs of $2,119,022 (2021-22: $1,841,001) relating to SAFA's insurance business activities have been allocated 
directly to claims expense. 

Deferred acquisition costs include any deficiency that is recognised through the write down of deferred acquisition costs 
for Building Indemnity Insurance and any cost for unexpired risk liability provision (refer Note 28 (d)(ii)). 
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S~ ~~ south Austral/an 
Government 
Financing Authority 

Note 19 Expenses (continued) 

(b) Income Tax Equivalent Expense with SA Government Reconciliation 

The prima facie income tax equivalent expense on pre-tax accounting profit reconciles 
to the income tax equivalent expense in the financial statements as follows: 

Profit before income tax equivalents 

Prima facie income tax equivalent expense at 30% 

lncrease/(Decrease) in income tax equivalent expense due to: 
Tax exempt Program Funding net (income)/expense 

Income Tax Equivalent Expense with SA Government 

Note 20 Net Claims Incurred and Underwriting Result 

2022 
$m 

74.1 

22.2 

(16.5) 

5.7 

The following table provides detail in relation to the net claims incurred cost. Current year claims relate to risks borne in 
the current reporting period. Prior period claims relate to a reassessment of the risks borne in previous reporting periods. 

2023 

Gross Claims Incurred and Related Expenses Undiscounted 

Other Recoveries Undiscounted 

Net Claims Incurred - Undiscounted 

Discount and Discount Movement - Gross Claims Incurred 
Discount and Discount Movement - Other Recoveries 

Net Discount Movement 
Net Claims Incurred 

Net claims incurred during 2022-23 in respect of claims incurred prior to 30 June 2022 was $66.1 million, resulting from: 

Interest on the 30 June 2022 provision, less payments during 2022-23 

Release of administration allowance and risk margin in respect of payments during 2022-23 

Changes in actuarial assumptions and experience deviation from expected 

In respect of In respect of 

2022 
Current Year Prior Years 

$000 $000 

Gross Claims Incurred and Related Expenses Undiscounted 97,561 20,186 
Other Recoveries Undiscounted (596) 4,005 
Net Claims Incurred - Undiscounted 96,965 24,191 

Discount and Discount Movement - Gross Claims Incurred (19,308) (44,817) 
Discount and Discount Movement - Other Recoveries 67 173 
Net Discount Movement (19,241) (44,644) 
Net Claims Incurred 77,724 (20,453) 

;~·r :__ ,-~~=•~, ~~ ~ 
·"'- :.-- ' ,1 8.2 ;·· ., , : (s:9) 

, ·,,, - ~56.8 
-,::.. , __ ;__ -_66_. !, 

Total 
$000 

117,747 
3,409 

121,156 

(64,125) 
240 

(63,885) 
57,271 

Net claims incurred during 2021-22 in respect of claims incurred prior to 30 June 2021 was negative $20.5 million, 
resulting from: 

Interest on the 30 June 2021 provision, less payments during 2021-22 
Release of administration allowance and risk margin in respect of payments during 2021-22 
Changes in actuarial assumptions and experience deviation from expected 
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S~ ~~ South Australian 
Government 
Financing Authority 

Note 20 Net Claims Incurred and Underwriting Result (continued) 

Net Earned Premium 
Insurance Premium Revenue 
Outwards Reinsurance Expense 

Net Claims Incurred 
Claims Expense 
Recoveries Income 

Net Underwriting Result 

Note 21 Contingent Assets and Liabilities 

Contingent Assets 

2022 
$m 

73.3 
16.7 
56.6 

(49.7) 
(5.5) 

(55.2) 

1.4 

Under Section 15 of the Government Financing Authority Act 1982, all financial obligations incurred or assumed by SAFA 
are guaranteed by the Treasurer on behalf of the State of South Australia. 

Contingent Liabilities 

(a) Guarantees 

On 3 May 2022 two guarantees totalling $17.0 million were provided to SA Water to enable its registration in the national 
electricity and gas markets, being $16.4 million and $0.6 million respectively. These guarantees expire on 30 June 2026 
and replace guarantees totalling $17.0 million that had been in place since December 2018 ($0.4 million) and 
November 2020 ($16.6 million), and which were due to expire on 30 June 2022. SA Water must comply with the 
prudential requirements set by the Australian Energy Market Operator and provide credit support through financial 
guarantees. There has been no event to trigger a call on these guarantees. Fair Value for these guarantees is equal to 
the amounts due at reporting date and are included in Receivables - SA Government (Note 9) . 

(b) Treasurer's Indemnity 

The Treasurer has indemnified SAFA against any profit or loss as a result of activities in the Insurance Funds 2 and 3. 
Given the nature of activities in these Funds, the Treasurer has approved that any operating profit or loss before tax will 
be nil. This is achieved by negating the operating profit or loss with either a payable to, or receivable from, the Treasurer. 
This policy resulted in a net receivable from the Treasurer of $13.2 million as at 30 June 2023 (payable to the Treasurer 
of $6.4 million as at 30 June 2022) . 

(c) Program Funding 

Funding has been received for financial assistance programs that SAFA manages on behalf of the SA Government. A 
liability for SAFA to make program funding payments is contingent upon these being approved, either under the terms of 
the program or at the conclusion of the program (refer to Note 2(w)). The amounts available for payment under these 
programs is as follows: 

Whyalla Steelworks Operational Efficiency Improvement Fund 
Live Music and Event Cancellation Fund 
Total Program Funding 
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Note 22 Auditor's Remuneration 

Audit fees payable to the Auditor-General's Department relating to work performed 
under the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987. 

S~ ~~ soutllAustrallan 
Government 
Financing Authority 

2022 
$000 

206 

206 

No other services were provided by the Auditor-General's Department. All fees are paid through SAFA's SLA with DTF. 

Note 23 Cash Flow Information 

(a) Reconciliation of Cash: 

Cash disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position 
Less accrued income 

Balance per Statement of Cash Flows 

(b) Reconciliation of comprehensive result to net cash provided 
by Operating Activities : 

Comprehensive Result for the Period 

Non-cash items 

Change in net market value of Financial instruments 
Amortisation of Financial instruments 
Depreciation and Impairment 
Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 
Bad Debts written off 
Capitalised Interest/Gains and Losses 

Movement in Operating Assets and Liabilities 
(lncrease)/Decrease in accrued interest receivable 

(lncrease)/Decrease in recoveries receivable 
(lncrease)/Decrease in sundry debtors and other assets 
lncrease/(Decrease) in accrued interest payable 

lncrease/(Decrease) in outstanding claims 
lncrease/(Decrease) in sundry creditors and other liabilities 

Foreign Currency movement 

Net cash provided by Operating Activities 

(c) Non Cash Financing and Investing Activities 

Note 

4 

2022 
$m 

780.9 
(0.5) 

780.4 

68.4 

26.4 
(49 .7) 
20.4 

(10.4) 
(0.0) 

393.9 

(12 .0) 

7.6 
(2.0) 
19.7 

(36 .6) 
(33.6) 

(0.0) 

392.1 

During 2022-23, $24.8 mill ion (2021-22: $393.7 million) was adjusted against the Treasurer's debt for book losses arising 
from debt management activity. 
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Note 23 Cash Flow Information (continued) 

(d) Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from Financing Activities 

2022 Cashflows 
$m 

At Call Deposits 27.7 (22.1) 
At Call Deposits - Treasurer 9,751 .8 (468.3) 
At Call Deposits - South Australian Government agencies 377.6 (146.8) 
Secured Borrowings 198.9 (198 .9) 
Commercial Paper 2,360.2 625.0 
Floating Rate Notes 2,857.1 (385 .5) 
Select Lines 23,353.0 2,292.5 
Retail Stock 112.8 33 .0 
Obligation to the Commonwealth Government 185.4 (10.9) 

Total Liabilities from Financing Activities 39,224.5 1,718.0 

2021 Cashflows 
$m 

At Call Deposits 14.2 13.5 
At Call Deposits - Treasurer 9,693.3 53.6 
At Call Deposits - South Australian Government agencies 564.2 (187.0) 
Secured Borrowings 198.9 
Commercial Paper 2,440.8 (74.1) 
Floating Rate Notes 1,722.2 1,140.0 
Select Lines 24,029.6 2,832.4 
Retail Stock 68.6 55.0 
Obligation to the Commonwealth Government 234 .6 (12 .1) 

Total Liabilities from Financing Activities 38,767.5 4,020.2 

Note 24 Consultants and Contractors 

S~~~ 
SautnAustrallan 
Government 
Financing AutJ1orllJI 

Foreign 
exchange Fair value 

movement changes 

1.0 

27.6 

0.1 10.6 

(18.2) 

4.1 

(863.6) 

(1 .8) 

(6.5) 

0.1 (846.8) 

Foreign 
exchange Fair value 2022 

movement changes $m 

27.7 

4 .9 9,751.8 

(0.1) 0.5 377.6 

198.9 

3.2 (9 .7) 2,360.2 

(5 .1) 2,857.1 

(3,509.0) 23,353.0 

(10.8) 112.8 

(37.1) 185.4 

3.1 (3,566.3) 39,224.5 

The number of consultancies and the dollar amount paid/payable (included in operating expenses) to consultants that fell within the 
following bands: 

Below $10 ,000 
$10,000 or above 
Total Consultants expense 

2022 
No $000 

3 
4 
7 

11 
430 
441 

In addition to the amounts shown in the table above, $30,217 (2021-22: $29,961) in consultants fees were paid through SAFA's SLA with 
DTF. These consultants are disclosed in DTF's Financial Statements . 

The number of contractors and the dollar amount paid/payable (included in operating expenses) to contractors that fell within the 
following bands : 

Below $10,000 
$10,000 or above 
Total Contractors expense 

--~ . ---·- ' . 
:. . ~ 0 . $000 
(··· .... ~· ~ ~ 

l ~ 1 :4 
,: . ·_'.'\),· ~-- · ·53 °. 
'.'.: - '..'·_2:.:0

·,.,.,,-~- :s11 

2022 
No $000 

2 

1 
3 

6 
56 
62 

In addition to the amounts shown in the table above, $272,035 (2021-22: $383,928) in contractor fees were paid through SAFA's SLA 
with DTF. These contractors are disclosed in DTF's Financial Statements. 
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Note 25 Related Parties 

StA ~~ Soutl>Australlan 
Government 
Financing Authori(JI 

Key management personnel (KMP) of SAFA include the Treasurer, Under Treasurer, Chief Executive Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer and Directors, who have responsibility for the strategic direction and management of the authority. 
Compensation commentary detailed below excludes salaries and other benefits the Treasurer receives. The 
Treasurer's remuneration and allowances are set by the Parliamentary Remuneration Act 1990 and the Remuneration 
Tribunal of SA respectively and are payable from the Consolidated Account (via DTF) under section 6 of the 
Parliamentary Remuneration Act 1990. 

SAFA's KMP are employed by DTF and provided to SAFA through SAFA's SLA with DTF. 

(a) Key Management Personnel 

The following persons held authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of SAFA, 
directly or indirectly, during the financial year: 

Mr S Mullighan* 
Mr R Persse* 
Mr A Coates 
Ms A Hughes 
Mr T Burfield 
Mr A Kennedy 
Ms L Smith 

Mr M Twells 

Ms J White 

* not included in Key Management Personnel Compensation 

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation 

Short-term employee benefits 
Post-employment benefits 

(c) Related party transactions 

Treasurer 
Under Treasurer 
Chief Executive Officer (from Feb 2023) 
Chief Executive Officer (until Jul 2022) 
Director, Risk and Commercial Advisory 
Director, Treasury Services 
Chief Financial Officer (from Jun 2023) 
Acting Chief Financial Officer (from Feb 2023 until Jun 2023) 
Acting Chief Executive Officer (from Jul 2022 until Feb 2023) 
Chief Financial Officer (until Feb 2023) 
Director, Insurance and Fleet 

2022 
$000 

1,148.2 
133.7 

1,281.9 

SAFA is a statutory authority constituted as the Under Treasurer under the Government Financing Authority Act 1982. 
SAFA is subject to the control and direction of the Treasurer of South Australia who in turn, is responsible to the 
Parliament of South Australia for the proper administration of the Act. 

Related parties include the Government of South Australia and South Australian state public sector organisations, as 
well as the Treasurer of South Australia and SAFA KMP and their close family members. 

(i) Individually significant transactions 

SAFA provides a number of loans to, and accepts deposits from, the Treasurer of South Australia . This is one of the 
primary functions of SAFA. 

Loans to the Treasurer 
At Call Deposits - Treasurer 
Interest Revenue 
Interest Expense 
Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments and Derivatives 

(ii) Collectively significant transactions 

Note 

7 
12 
17 
17 
18 

2022 
$m 

22,018.1 
9,751.8 

336.0 
(16.4) 

(2,382.6) 

SAFA functions as the central financing authority, captive insurer and manager of the passenger and light commercial 
vehicle fleet operations for the Government of South Australia. Balances and transactions related to these services 
are reported in various notes to the Financial Statements, as amounts "Internal to the South Australian Government". 

Financial Statements 2022-23 281 Page www.safa.sa.gov.au 



Note 26 Unrecognised Contractual Commitments 

(a) Operating Lease Commitments Receivable 

SAFA as a Lessor 

StA ~~ South Australian 
Government 
Financing Autllaritll 

Leases in which SAFA retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset are classified as 
operating leases. Agencies have entered into commercial leases on motor vehicles owned by SAFA. These leases 
are predominately for terms up to three years, with an option, subject to approval, to extend in six monthly intervals to 
a maximum term of four years for passenger vehicles and a maximum term of five years for light commercial vehicles. 

Future minimum rentals receivable (excluding GST) under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows : 

Operating Lease Receipts: 
Not later than one year 
Later than one year but not later than five years 
Later than five years 
Total Non-Cancellable Operating Lease Receivables 

(b) Other Commitments 

2022 
$m 

32.7 
27.1 

0.1 
59.9 

SAFA's other commitments relate to vehicle management fees, software licences and maintenance, and outsourced 
funds management fees. These amounts relate to vendors that are external to the South Australian Government. 

Expenditure Commitments: 
Not later than one year 
Later than one year but not later than five years 
Later than five years 
Total Other Commitments 

(c) Short-Term Lease Commitments Payable 

SAFA as a Lessee 

2022 
$m 

3.9 
6.3 
3.9 

14.1 

SAFA's short-term leases are for car parking spaces. Car parking spaces are leased on a month-by-month basis, with 
rent payable one month in advance. 

Future minimum rentals payables (excluding GST) under non-cancellable short-term leases are as follows : 

Short-Term Lease Payments: 
Not later than one year 
Total Non-Cancellable Short-Term Lease Payables 

(d) Unused Loan Facilities 

2022 
$m 

0.1 
0.1 

Loan facilities extended by SAFA are reviewed annually. Unutilised loan facilities at financial year end are as follows: 

External to South Australian Government 
Internal to South Australian Government 
Total Unused Loan Facilities 
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Note 27 Capital Management 

S~ ~~ South Austral/an 
Gavernrnent 
Financing Authority 

SAFA's objective is to maintain capital that allows it to continue as a going concern while exposing its stakeholders to an 
acceptable level of risk. SAFA's capital comprises Retained Earnings ($426.Sm in 2022-23; $399.3m in 2021-22). The 
capital position is reviewed periodically by Management to ensure its adequacy is commensurate with the level of risk. 
Management considers the following factors, among others, when managing capital requirements: 

- The overall risk position of the business; 
- Dividend policy; 
- The requirements of the Government Financing Authority Act 1982; and 
- The guarantee provided to SAFA by the Treasurer on behalf of the State of South Australia (refer Note 21 ). 

Note 28 Financial Risk Management 

SAFA's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk (including interest rate risk, 
price risk and currency risk) and insurance risk. SAFA's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability 
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of SAFA. SAFA uses 
derivative financial instruments such as futures, foreign exchange contracts, forward rate agreements and interest rate 
swaps to reduce certain risk exposures. 

The guidelines within which these risks are undertaken and managed are established under policies and guidelines 
approved by the Treasurer and Management. SAFA monitors compliance with these policies and constraints by 
appropriately segregating the monitoring from the operating business unit. Information is summarised and reported daily 
to Management and reported quarterly to the Advisory Board. These disclosures and the methods used have not 
changed during the reporting period. 

(a) Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss and associated costs resulting from the failure of a counterparty to meet its financial 
obligations as and when they fall due. SAFA incurs credit risk through undertaking its core functions of fundraising, debt 
management, liquidity management and the Government's reinsurance program. 

SAFA's dealings in physical securities and other financial contracts, including derivatives, are transacted only with 
counterparties possessing strong to extremely strong safety characteristics regarding timely payment of principal and 
interest. 

Should a participant in the Government's reinsurance program become insolvent or cease trading, the recoveries to which 
SAFA may be entitled could be jeopardised in full or in part, or the timing of any recovery may be subject to an insolvency 
action. 

To minimise the potential for credit loss, SAFA complies with stringent credit guidelines. The guidelines are designed to 
promote diversification of credit risk amongst counterparties while limiting exposure only to highly rated institutions 
worldwide. The credit guidelines do not apply to loans to South Australian Government entities. 

AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, requires the disclosure of the amount of change in fair value that is 
attributable to the change in SAFA's credit risk. The following table shows the amount of change in fair value of Liabilities 
and Loans as at the end of the reporting period that is considered to have contributed to SAFA's credit risk for the period 
and cumulative. 

Loans change in fair value profit/(loss) 
Liabilities change in fair value profit/(loss) 

2023 
Period Cumulative 

. $m $m 

(0.6) 216.7 

0.8 . (272.7) 

Period 
$m 

0.7 

(0.9) 

2022 
Cumulative 

$m 

289.3 
(371.3) 

The change in fair values attributable to credit risk have been calculated by determining the change in the spread 
between SAFA and Swap yield curves at the issue date and period end dates. This spread movement is then applied to 
the delta of each transaction to calculate the considered credit component. The spreads between SAFA and Swap yield 
curves as at 30 June 2023 ranged between -14 and 86 basis points (30 June 2022: -22 and 61 basis points). 
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Note 28 Financial Risk Management (continued) 

(a) Credit Risk (continued) 

(i) Credit Quality 

S~ ~~ South Austral/an 
Government 
Financing Authority 

Impairment requirements result in a provision being applied to all receivables, rather than only on those receivables that 
are credit impaired. There are no impairment provisions (including expected credit losses), for State, Territory, or 
Commonwealth Government receivables due to the Government's high quality credit rating , and low risk of loss. 

Loss allowances for receivables are measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss using the simplified 
approach in AASB 9 Financial Instruments. SAFA uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit loss of 
receivables from non-government debtors which comprise a large number of small balances. 

To measure the expected credit losses, receivables are grouped based on shared risk characteristics and the days past 
due. When estimating the expected credit loss (ECL), SAFA considers reasonable and supportable quantitative and 
qualitative information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. Receivables more than 90 days past 
due are considered credit impaired, and a provision for the full amount has been established. Accordingly no ECL has 
been recognised for these debtors. 

Loss rates are based on actual history of credit loss. SAFA considers differences between previous economic conditions 
and forecast economic conditions, though these factors are unlikely to affect loss rates due to the nature of receivables 
and the debtors. The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the full contractual period 
over which SAFA is exposed to credit risk. 

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for non-government debtors. This 
expected credit loss allowance forms part of the allowance for impairment loss (refer Note 9). 

2022 

Debtor 
gross Lifetime 

carrying expected 
amount losses 

$000 Loss% $000 

Current (not past due) 37.3 4.1% 1.5 

1 - 30 days past due 20.5 3.3% 0.7 

31 - 60 days past due 14.1 0.0% 0.0 

61 - 90 days past due 16.4 3.0% 0.5 

More than 90 days past due 360.8 N/A 

Expected Credit Loss allowance 2.7 
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S~ ~~ Soutl1Au>tral/an 
Government 
Financing Authority 

Note 28 Financial Risk Management (continued) 

(a) Credit Risk (continued) 

(i) Credit Quality (continued) 

The following table sets out the credit quality of financial assets other than receivables. The ratings have been presented 
based on credit ratings from Standard and Poors. 

The disclosure below measures credit risk for physical securities at face value, and the credit risk of derivative 
transactions using a mark-to-market methodology that includes an additional factor to cover potential future adverse 
market movements less any collateral held. 

The majority of SAFA's lending is to agencies and corporations of the South Australian Government. In respect to the 
repayment of loans by authorities (which are fully guaranteed by the Treasurer) the ultimate credit risk is to the Treasurer. 
The principal focus for SAFA is therefore with risk that arises through investment of funds in financial assets and through 
derivative transactions with market counterparties. 

Concentration of Credit Risk by credit rating: 

2023 Asset Class 

Loans/Investments 

Interest Rate Swaps 

Foreign Exchange 

Total 

2022 Asset Class 

Loans/Investments 

Interest Rate Swaps 

Foreign Exchange 

Total 

Rating 

AAA 
$m 

AA+ AA 

$m $m 

1,012.0 427.0 

1,012.0 427.0 

AA-

$m 

3,009.3 

159.0 

3,168.3 

A+ A BBB+ BBB NR* Total 

$m $m $m $m $m $m 

2,041 .8 863.4 128.0 65.0 34,058.6 41,605.1 

7.9 166.9 

2,041.8 863.4 128.0 65.0 34,066.5 41,772.0 

* NR - not classified under particular ratings. Includes loans to SA Government of $35,063 million (2021 -22: $33,100 million). 

2022-23 Credit Risk: Country 2022-23 Credit Risk: Counterparty 

■ Austral ia ■ Non Australia SA Government ■ Banks ■ Other 

2021-22 (Aus 93% Non Aus 7%) 2021 -22 (SAG 81 % Bank 15% Other4%) 
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Note 28 Financial Risk Management (continued) 

(a) Credit Risk (continued) 

(ii) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 

S~ ~~ South Austral/an 
Government 
Financing Authority 

Financial assets and liabilities subject to offsetting and/or master netting agreements: 

SAFA enters into derivative transactions under International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) master netting 
agreements. Derivative asset and liability positions are accounted for at the transaction level, and are not offset at the 
counterparty level in the Statement of Financial Position. SAFA does not currently have a legally enforceable right to 
offset these positions in the usual course of business. The right to offset is enforceable only on the occurrence of 
future credit events, such as default. Furthermore, SAFA does not intend to settle these transactions on a net basis. 
SAFA has entered into collateral agreements with major banks. 

The analysis presented below sets out the carrying amounts of recognised financial instruments that are subject to the 
above agreements. 

2023 

Assets 

Interest Rate Swaps 
Foreign Currency Swaps 
Secured Cash Lending 

Total 

Liabilities 

Secured Borrowings 

Interest Rate Swaps 
Foreign Currency Swaps 

Total 

2022 

Assets 

Interest Rate Swaps 
Foreign Currency Swaps 
Secured Cash Lending 

Total 

Liabilities 

Secured Borrowings 

Interest Rate Swaps 
Foreign Currency Swaps 

Total 

Gross Amounts 
Gross amounts 

offset in the 
of Financial 

Statement of 
Assets and 

Financial 
Liabilities 

Position 

$m $m 

35.2 0.0 

0.0 0.0 

0.0 0.0 

35.2 0.0 

(198 .9) 0.0 

(370.3) 0.0 

0.0 0.0 

(569.2) 0.0 

Reconciliation to the Statement of Financial Position 

Net amounts 
presented in 

the Statement 
of Financial 

Position 

$m 

35.2 

0.0 

0.0 

35.2 

(198 .9) 

(370.3) 

0.0 

(569.2) 

Related amounts not offset 

Subject to Financial 
master netting collateral 

Net 
or other (incl. cash 

agreements collateral) 

$m $m $m 

(35.1) (1.0) (0.9) 

0.0 0.0 0.0 

0.0 0.0 0.0 

(35.1) (1.0) (0.9) 

0.0 198.9 0.0 

35.1 324.3 (10.9) 

0.0 0.0 0.0 

35.1 523.2 (10.9) 

The 'Net amounts presented in the Statement of Financial Position', as set out above, are reflected in the Statement of 
Financial Position (refer Notes 4, 8, 12 and 15). 
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Note 28 Financial Risk Management (continued) 

(b) Liquidity Risk 

S~ ~~ South Australian 
Government 
Financing Authority 

In order to manage liquidity risk, SAFA has in place liquidity management guidelines, which require SAFA to hold a 
base level of liquidity comprising highly marketable liquid financial assets. Liquid financial assets include cash, secured 
cash lending securities, promissory notes, Commonwealth bonds, floating rate notes and negotiable certificates of 
deposit. The level of liquid financial asset holdings by SAFA on any given day must be sufficient to cover the higher of 
a base liquidity buffer of $1 ,500 million or the sum of debt maturities in the next 60 days on a rolling days basis. 
Adherence to these guidelines enables SAFA to be in a position to meet the forecast cash demands and any 
unanticipated funding requirements of the South Australian public sector. 

SAFA has chosen an approach to minimise medium-term refinancing risks, which involves diversification of physical 
borrowings across the maturity spectrum, diversification of funding sources and the holding of liquid assets to assist in 
the management of refinancing and liquidity risk. These strategies result in SAFA facing manageable funding demands 
from financial markets in any given period. This approach assists the maintenance of an orderly market place for 
SAFA's securities when refinancing maturing debt obligations . 

The liquidity analysis below has been presented on a contractual basis, representing the repayment of undiscounted 
principal and interest amounts for financial assets and liabilities, and the estimated discounted settlement amount for 
outstanding claims. 

2023 

Assets 
Cash and Short Term Assets 
Investments 
Loans 
Receivables and Other Assets 

Total 

Liabilities 

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 
Bonds, Notes and Debentures 
Outstanding Claims 
Payables and Other Liabilities 

Total 

Net 

Net Derivatives 
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Note 28 Financial Risk Management (continued) 

(b) Liquidity Risk (continued) 

2022 < 3 Months 
3 to 12 1 to 2 2 to 3 

Months Years Years 
$m $m $m $m 

Assets 
Cash and Short Term Assets 3,037.8 725.0 

Investments 1,975.3 1,688.8 122.6 329.5 

Loans 10,231 .5 361 .5 1,873.8 2,819.7 
Receivables and Other Assets 25.2 

Total 15,269.8 2,775.3 1,996.4 3,149.2 

Liabilities 

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings (11,650.9) (1,075.0) 

Bonds, Notes and Debentures (2,698 .2) (2,102.4) (2 ,149.3) (5,791 .0) 
Outstanding Claims (32.1) (95.6) (66.9) (59.1) 

Payables and Other Liabilities (25.0) 

Total (14,406.2) (3,273.0) (2,216.2) (5,850.1) 

Net 863.6 (497.7) (219.8) (2,700.9) 

Net Derivatives (2.7) (30.0) (58.1) (42.0) 

(c) Market Risk 

3 to 4 
Years 

$m 

441 .0 

1,680.1 

2,121.1 

(4,130.1) 

(54.4) 

(4,184.5) 

(2,063.4) 

(44.1) 

S~ ~~ South Austral/an 
Government 
Financing Authority 

4 to 5 Overs 
Total 

Years Years 
$m $m $m 

3,762.8 

63.8 723.4 5,344.4 

186.1 18,898.7 36,051.4 

25 .2 

249.9 19,622.1 45,183.8 

- (12 ,725 .9) 

(354.1) (15,364.4) (32,589.5) 

(51.4) (245.9) (605.4) 

(25.0) 

(405.5) (15,610.3) (45,945.8) 

(155.6) 4,011.8 (762.0) 

(36.1) (199.6) (412.6) 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will result in gains or losses on SAFA's financial instruments. 
SAFA has a range of policies in place to manage market risk, including counterparty exposure limits, risk limits and 
liquidity and maturity limits. The main tool used to measure and assess market risks within each of SAFA's trading 
portfolios is Value at Risk (VaR). 

(i) Price Risk 

Treasury Operations 

SAFA manages the sensitivity of its treasury portfolios for changes in market risk variables by calculating VaR daily and 
monitoring the calculated VaR against pre-determined exposure limits. VaR is the calculation of the potential loss due 
to interest rate movements for any one day. 

SAFA calculates VaR using the Historical Simulation method and a two year interest rate horizon. The daily VaR is 
assessed at the 95% confidence level. 

The following table shows the computed VaR on SAFA's principal portfolios: 

Funding Portfolio 

Liquidity Portfolio 

.<.:. , 2023 . · 2023 

. .' .Actual Working Limit 

_:· :·,.$000 __ ~_ . , $Q_QQ_ 
~. 127.9 .' .. . . 500.0 

~- .1 :599 9 . . . 6 ,500.0 

2022 2022 

Actual Working Limit 

$000 $000 

111.4 500.0 

1,109.4 6,500.0 

SAFA's treasury portfolio that reflects SAFA's position with the Treasurer of South Australia is not reported above, as all 
risk in this portfolio is borne directly by the Treasurer. 

As SAFA's VaR model relies on historical data and assumes recent historic market conditions, it may not always 
accurately predict the size of potential losses. SAFA therefore uses other controls such as limits on exposures based 
on factor sensitivity measurements covering interest rate, yield curve and basis spread movement scenarios and 
monitors exposures to plausible extreme market movements through stress testing. 
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Note 28 Financial Risk Management (continued) 

(c) Market Risk (continued) 

(i) Price Risk (continued) 

Insurance Operations 

S~ ~~ Soutl>Australlan 
Government 
Financing Authority 

The insurance portfolio is exposed to price risk arising from investments held with Funds SA. SAFA maintains policies 
outlining the strategies for investment of funds and these policies are reviewed every three years. 

The following table shows the impact of a positive or negative 10% movement in the value of investment funds held 
with Funds SA: 

2023 

Fund 1 

Fund 2* 
Fund 3* 

Fund 4 
Total 

2022 Profit (Post tax) Equity 

Investments -10% 10% -10% 10% 

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Fund 1 524,566 (36,720) 36,720 (36,720) 36,720 

Fund 2* 14,207 (994) 994 (994) 994 

Fund 3* 45,797 (3,206) 3,206 (3,206) 3,206 

Fund 4 111,342 (7,794) 7,794 (7,794) 7,794 

Total 695,912 (48,714) 48,714 (48,714) 48,714 

* Due to the nature of activities undertaken by Fund 2 and Fund 3, the Treasurer has approved that any operating profit 
or loss before tax will be nil for each of these funds. Therefore, any movement in the value of investments with Funds 
SA for Fund 2 or Fund 3 would effectively be offset by the Treasurer's Indemnity (Refer Note 21 ). 

(ii) Interest Rate Risk 

SAFA uses a variety of methods to measure interest rate risk, including basis point sensitivity, duration and VaR. The 
Treasurer and Under Treasurer approve interest rate risk limits for SAFA's portfolios. 

SAFA uses interest rate derivatives to manage the sensitivity of investment portfolios to interest rate fluctuations to be 
within strict limits, without requiring transactions in physical securities. SAFA utilises futures contracts, interest rate 
swaps and forward rate agreements to manage interest rate risk. 

The following table shows the computed Price Value per basis point (PV01) of SAFA's principal portfolios, reflecting 
changes in portfolio value relative to interest rate movements: 

Funding Portfolio 
Liquidity Portfolio 

[::, .. 2023°' · 2023 

~- · · Actl!al Working Li'!'it 
/,,:·. •'$ . ··· $ 
;:(.:.. ..... ,_ - -
t·:J~ t 2aa --~ "· . ---- . -± 5~009· 

:r X,~;-. )46L _,, ·. __ :i: 10,000 

2022 

Actual 
$ 

(574) 

(822) 

2022 

Working Limit 

$ 

± 5,000 

± 10,000 

SAFA's treasury portfolio that reflects SAFA's position with the Treasurer of South Australia is not reported above, as all 
risk in this portfolio is borne directly by the Treasurer. 
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Note 28 Financial Risk Management (continued) 

(c) Market Risk (continued) 

(iii) Foreign Currency Risk 

S~ ~~ SouthAustrallun 
Govemment 
Financing Authority 

SAFA has a policy of limiting its foreign currency risk, and has limits in place to protect against movements in foreign 
currency exchange rates . SAFA utilises foreign exchange swaps, foreign exchange and forward exchange contracts to 
manage the foreign currency exposures associated with foreign currency borrowings. · 

The following table summarises SAFA's exposure to exchange rate risk. The value to be received under the currency 
contracts is undertaken to net any foreign currency liabilities: 

2023 

Less than 1 year 

Net Foreign Currency Assets/(Liab) 

Net Derivatives 

Total Exposure 

Sensitivity 

Profit/ Equity impact (in AUD) of +1 % change in 
foreign currency 

2022 

Less than 1 year 

Net Foreign Currency Assets/(Liab) 
Net Derivatives 

Total Exposure 

Sensitivity 

Profit/ Equity impact (in AUD) of +1 % change in 
foreign currency 

:~;uso·~ :-:: EUR;'.~~ NZD 

·•-• Asoo_o · · A$~oo ·· .L~$ooo 

~~~~1;,,:;~•~t :1,,; 
fit :~·_?A.- :.·:: i~ii1:'.'--I ~tiI 
r;.,..;:.,-::: r-,... ~ -~ ; .. ,, .~ 

~,:,,-1:,::::~;]Jil 
USD 

A$000 

11 .3 

11 .3 

0.1 

EUR 
A$000 

(87.3) 

(87.3) 

(0.9) 

NZD 
A$000 

17.0 

17.0 

0.2 

SAFA's total exposure to exchange rate risk (on a net basis) is -$35,693 for the year ended 30 June 2023 (2021-22: -
$58,957) . Had the Australian Dollar weakened by 10 per cent against the foreign currencies listed above, the direct 
impact to SAFA would be a loss of approximately $3,966. (2021-22: $6,551 loss). 

(d) Insurance Risk 

SAFA uses a range of policies to manage risk associated with its insurance activities. The most relevant methods 
include: 
- the continual monitoring of the experience and development of claims; 
- premium setting methodologies that reflect the latest development in the risks SAFA's Insurance division is insuring ; 

- placing reinsurance to protect the capital base against a severe adverse event or a series of severe adverse events ; 
and 

- regular review of the investment strategy for assets backing insurance liabilities. 

(i) Claims Development 

The following tables show the development of incurred cost on net undiscounted outstanding claims (Medical 
Malpractice, Liability, Property and Building Indemnity) relative to the ultimate expected estimate over the ten most 
recent financial years. Figures provided are net of reinsurance and relate to Fund 1 and Fund 3. This information is not 
disclosed for Fund 2 or Fund 4 as it is not considered appropriate for the activities of the funds. 
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Note 28 Financial Risk Management (continued) 

(d) Insurance Risk (continued) 

(i) Claims Development (continued) 

Medical Malpractice 

Loss Cumulative Payments Plus Undiscounted Outstanding Liability 

Year Measurement as at 30 June 

Ending 2014 2015 2016 

30-Jun $000 $000 

2017 2018 2019 

$000 

2020 

$000 

2021 

$000 

2022 

$000 

2023 

$000 

2014 21,702 22,124 20,434 18,715 16,910 12,372 6,751 4,959 5,620 12,603 

StA ~~ Soutl>Austra/lan 
Government 
Financing Autl>orllY 

Undiscounted Discount 

Paid to Liability Present 

Date Jun-23 Value 

$000 $000 $000 

9 12,594 9,778 

2015 0 20,569 27,417 25,704 24,802 20,158 16,106 15,109 29,194 24,846 6,338 18,509 14,172 

2016 0 0 24,613 26,061 31,117 27,674 20,184 20,260 27,889 25,183 742 24,441 18,416 

2017 0 0 0 28,856 27,704 22,485 19,456 14,016 16,574 18,999 1,764 17,235 12,739 

2018 0 0 0 0 30,288 24,689 29,235 42,460 35,353 32,389 6,857 25,532 18,435 

2019 0 0 0 0 0 28,429 24,780 23,557 24,231 28,561 59 28,502 20,037 

2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 29,090 34,608 34,040 30,687 676 30,011 20,453 

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34,431 36,307 32,502 75 32,427 21 ,334 

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40,900 36,912 29 36,883 23,333 

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 43,782 23 43,759 26,570 

Liability 

Loss Cumulative Payments Plus Undiscounted Outstanding Liability 

Year Measurement as at 30 June 

Ending 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

30-Jun $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

2014 6,478 6,128 5,425 5,322 5,228 4,734 4,246 12,513 5,326 

2023 

$000 

5,559 

Undiscounted Discount 

Paid to Liability Present 

Date Jun-23 

$000 $000 

3,448 2,111 

Value 

$000 

1,833 

2015 7,540 6,516 6,266 3,888 2,819 3,470 5,375 4,640 6,320 2.415 3,905 3,359 

2016 8,584 8,201 7,176 5,622 4,755 5,426 5,518 4,911 2,650 2,261 1,957 

2017 6,080 5,363 4,383 4,532 7,063 7,304 10,969 5,008 5,961 5,133 

2018 10,866 7,777 6,137 4,424 3,780 3,093 596 2,497 2,142 

2019 9,394 8,351 7,789 6,059 6,631 1,486 5,145 4,366 

2020 9,552 7,598 6,049 4,043 164 3,879 3,246 

2021 10,563 8,354 7,427 143 7,284 5,994 

2022 11,301 9,274 88 9,186 7,373 

2023 13,243 48 13, 195 10,274 

Property 

Loss Cumulative Payments Plus Undiscounted Outstanding Liability 

Year Measurement as at 30 June 

Undiscounted Discount 

Ending 

30-Jun 

2014 

2014 

$000 

2015 

$000 

2016 

$000 

2017 

$000 

2018 

$000 

2019 

$000 

2020 

$000 

2021 

$000 

2022 

$000 

3,223 3,399 3,512 3,395 3,387 3,380 3,374 3,372 3,371 

Paid to Liability Present 

2023 Date Jun-23 Value 

$000 $000 $000 $000 

3,371 3,371 0 0 

2015 3,978 4,500 3,232 3,188 3,170 3,162 3,154 3,151 3,148 3,148 0 0 

2016 3,081 3,822 2,996 2,251 2,229 2,222 2,216 2,215 2,213 2 2 

2017 14,833 13,030 12.453 13,926 12,892 12,898 12,935 12,171 764 694 

2018 3,464 1,989 2,063 1,942 3,479 3,468 3,029 439 397 

2019 3,666 2,369 2,435 2,391 2,380 2,356 24 22 

2020 180,740 146,174 145,472 121,406 120,859 547 492 

2021 5,221 4,593 7,658 3,840 3,818 3,464 

2022 18,243 19,572 2,741 16,831 15,634 

2023 0 103,647 5,904 97,743 89,411 
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Note 28 Financial Risk Management (continued) 

(d) Insurance Risk (continued) 

(i) Claims Development (continued) 

Building Indemnity 

S~ ~~ Soutl!Austral/an 
Government 
Financing Aulllor/zy 

Loss Cumulative Payments Plus Undiscounted Outstanding Liability 

Year Measurement as at 30 June 

Undiscounted Unearned Earned Discount 

Liabilities Liabilities Present 

Ending 2014 2015 2016 2017 
30-Jun $000 $000 $000 $000 

2018 
$000 

2019 
$000 

2020 
$000 

2021 
$000 

2022 
$000 

2014 6,755 7,824 7,132 5,655 4 ,447 4,135 4 ,512 4 ,368 4 ,142 

Paid to 

2023 Date 
$000 $000 

4,026 3,868 

Liability 

Jun-23 
$000 

158 

Jun-23 Jun-23 
$000 $000 

13 145 

Value 
$000 

151 

2015 6,504 1,121 1 ,21a 5,797 5,002 5,on 5,110 5,101 4 ,866 4,659 201 30 111 194 

2016 7,241 10,523 9,429 5,894 7,062 7,073 7,297 7,815 6,604 1,211 97 1,114 1,123 

2017 8,450 9,563 8,615 10,947 10,025 9,539 9,138 7,941 1,197 183 1,014 1,097 

2018 9,468 13,559 17,118 14,855 14,113 14,375 12,072 2,303 393 1,910 2,164 

2019 14,216 17,945 14,856 13,319 14,117 10,673 3,444 728 2,716 3,242 

2020 13,481 8,487 6,692 6,013 2,957 3,056 1,263 1,793 2,839 

2021 15,630 12,962 10,122 1,276 8,846 2,949 5,897 8,236 

2022 12,131 10,340 272 10,068 5,644 4,424 9,377 
==-'!l' 

(ii) Unexpired Risk Liability 

The LAT (Note 2 (r)) was completed by the independent actuary for Building Indemnity Insurance offered by SAFA. The 
actuary compares the unearned premium and the expected cost of claims arising from this premium, including associated 
expenses and a risk margin. Any deficiency is recognised immediately in Statement of Comprehensive Income, with the 
corresponding impact on the Statement of Financial Position recognised first through the write down of deferred 
acquisition costs for Building Indemnity Insurance and then through the establishment of a provision (unexpired risk 
liability). At 30 June 2023 the result of the LAT meant that there was a premium deficiency. 

a. Calculation of Premium Deficiencies 

Net unearned premium liability 

Net present value of future policy costs 

Gross deferred acquisition costs recognised 

Gross premium deficiency 

Gross deferred acquisition costs written down 

Net premium deficiency 

Gross deferred acquisition costs recognised in Statement of Financial Position 

2022 
$000 

24,295 

28,762 

4,672 

(9,139) 

4,672 

4,467 

The increase in deferred acquisition costs of $2.4 million (2021 -22: Nil) and the decrease in unexpired risk liability of 
$4.5 million (2021-22: $0.5 million increase) have been recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income during the 
financial year. 

b. Reconciliation of Premium Liabilities, Reinsurance Assets and related Deferred Acquisition Costs 

Gross Reinsurance Acquisition cost Net 
$000 $000 $000 $000 

Unearned premium liability/(asset) at 30 June 2021 29,481 .7 (4 ,919.0) 0.0 24,562 .7 

Premium written 72,076.8 (17,312.5) (2 ,539.8) 52,224.5 

Premium (earned)/incurred (73,338.4) 16,670.6 2,539.8 (54,128.0) 

Premium deficiency adjustment 542.1 0.0 0.0 542.1 
Unearned premium liability/(asset) at 30 June 2022 <·· ;"'. :· ·, 23Js:f 2 ~. . f (5,560.9) : /·?'';,..;;; · 0.0 '23,201.3 -

=-' .,_"., l ~" .,.-,~ ,,'r •. •••.,..-;.::•.•• • • ",.''",••-•,;~-• .... ~• ,,•i~ . • ,"-.>,t • '. 

Premium written :···. ·-, ·;;·,.·, . ,, · ·, ·'' 85,507 .2 .,. ,· (19,183.0) '.,,,•<· \2,770.1 69,094.3 -
Premium (earned)/incurr~d . . ' .... , . (84,909.5). . 18,506.3 :·,,-,'· :,-(323 .8) (66,727.0) . , 

Pr~mium deficiency adju; tment ·. , .. ·' (4.,467.3) -~ ·. ·o.O . . . ·. 0.0 (4,467 .3) 
• • • ,, -. • ''" '~• I~. -. • - ._ • • 1 A.• ', , • • - • • L 

Unearned premium liability/(asset) at 30 JIJl'!e .. ?02_3 · . . ;,., . ~4,892.6 , ;~ (6,237.6) ·. . . :· ?,446.3 . 21,101.3 
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Note 28 Financial Risk Management (continued) 

(d) Insurance Risk (continued) 

(iii) Concentration Risk 

S~ ~~ Sout l1Australlan 
Government 
Financing Authority 

While investments in the Insurance portfolio contain some diversity, by its nature it is geographically concentrated in 
Adelaide and as such is exposed to the risk of potentially material property catastrophes of the State, being 
earthquake, bushfires, storms, floods and cyber attack. The reinsurance program is purchased to provide protection 
in excess of the retention level, which by insurance class is: $40 million per event for property; $20 million per event 
for cyber risk; $20 million per event for medical malpractice; and, $1 million per event, with a $20 million annual 
aggregate, for liability. Management annually reviews the appropriateness of the retention level. 

SAFA provides the medical indemnity insurance for all public hospitals in South Australia and as such is exposed to 
the consequences of any factor which increases the cost of such cover for example, legal precedents. 

(iv) Sensitivity Analysis 

SAFA has tested the sensitivity of the results to a change in the key assumptions used in the valuation of outstanding 
claims liabilities. These include changes to the discount and superimposed inflation rates and changes in expected 
average claim costs and incurred cost development patterns. The following table sets out the tests carried out and 
the results: 

2023 

Insurance Fund 

1. Discount Rate 

(a) Increase by 1% 

(b) Decrease by 1% 

2. Inflation/Superimposed Inflation Rate 

(a) Increase by 1 % 

(b) Decrease by 1% 

3. Other Assumptions 

(a) Increase Medical Malpractice and Liability 
expected 'a prior' cost by 10% 
(b) Additional large claim for Medical 
Malpractice and Liability 
(c) Increase Building Indemnity expected 'a 
prior' cost by 5% 
(d) 30% more National Redress claims 

Note 29 Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities 

(a) Contractual Obligations and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value 

The difference between financial liabilities carrying amount (fair value) and the amount contractually required to be 
paid at maturity is detailed below. 

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 
Bonds, Notes and Debentures 

Notes: 

carrying 
~ Amount 

.· $m 

12,52_6,. 2 
.27,569.6 

• 2023:- .I 

Principal 
Outstanding · Diff 

·$rri $11} 

12,520.9 5.3 
L3o,4io.a ., (2,901 .2) 

(1) Fair value is inclusive of interest due at financial year end. 

2022 
Carrying Principal 
Amount Outstanding Diff 

$m $m $m 

12,716.2 12,688.8 27.4 
26,508.3 24,526.3 1,982.0 

(2) Principal outstanding at maturity is the amount SAFA is contractually required to pay at maturity, to the holder of 
the obligation, exclusive of interest due. 
(3) Bonds, Notes and Debentures - includes indexed linked securities. For the purposes of this note, the principal 
owing for indexed linked securities is assumed to equal the principal owing at financial year end. 
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Note 29 Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities (continued) 

(b) Financial Assets and Liabilities 

S~ ~~ Soutl!Ausrrallan 
Government 
Financing Authority 

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial assets and 
liabilities that are recognised and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To provide an indication about 
the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, SAFA has classified its assets and liabilities into the three 
levels prescribed under Australian Accounting Standards. An explanation of each level follows below. 

(i) Fair Value Hierarchy 

2023 Note 

Financial Assets 

Cash and Short Term Assets 4 

Investments 6 

Loans 7 

Derivatives Receivable 8 
Total 

Financial Liabilities 

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 12 

Bonds, Notes and Debentures 13 

Derivatives Payable 15 
Total 

Quoted market 
Market Non-market 

observable observable 
2022 Note price 

inputs inputs 
(Level 1) 

/Level 21 /Level 31 Total 

$m $m $m $m 

Financial Assets 

Cash and Short Term Assets 4 1,148.3 2,604.5 3,752.8 

Investments 6 1,274.7 3,886.2 5,160.9 

Loans 7 9,495.9 9,751 .7 12,180.8 31,428.4 

Derivatives Receivable 8 35.2 35.2 
Total 11,918.9 16,277.6 12,180.8 40,377.3 

Financial Liabilities 

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 12 (10,356.0) (2,360.2) (12,716.2) 

Bonds, Notes and Debentures 13 (26,210.1) (112.8) (185.4) (26,508.3) 

Derivatives Payable 15 (370.3) (370.3) 
Total (36,566.1) (2,843.3) (185.4) (39,594.8) 
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S~~~ 
Soutl>Aunrallan 
Government 
Financing Authorl(JI 

Note 29 Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities (continued) 

(b) Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued) 

(i) Fair Value Hierarchy (continued) 

SAFA generally recognises transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting 
period, unless specified otherwise. 

Financial Assets and Liabilities are categorised in levels of the fair value hierarchy based on the following : 

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that are accessible at the 
measurement date. 

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, which are observable for assets or liabilities, either 
directly or indirectly. 

- Level 3: Inputs to asset or liability valuation that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 
This category includes instruments that are valued using quoted prices, but where material adjustments are required 
as a result of relevant unobservable inputs or assumptions. 

(ii) Valuation Techniques Used to Determine Fair Values 

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include: 

- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments; 
- the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on 
observable yield curves; 
- the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet 
date; and 
- the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis. 

All of the above fair value estimates are included in Level 2. All valuation methods remain unchanged compared to 
the previous reporting period. 

(iii) Level 3 Financial Instruments Reconciliation 

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 items for the periods 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022: 

2023 

Balance at 30 June 2022 

Total gain/(loss) included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 

Purchases 

Sales 

Settlements 
Balance at 30 June 2023 

Total gains or losses in the above table are presented in 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income as follows: 

Interest Revenue 

Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments and Derivatives - Unrealised 

Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments and Derivatives - Realised 

Total 
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Note 29 Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities (continued) 

(b) Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued) 

(iii) Level 3 Financial Instruments Reconciliation (continued) 

2022 

Balance at 30 June 2021 

Total gain/(loss) included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 

Purchases 

Sales 

Settlements 

Balance at 30 June 2022 

Total gains or losses in the above table are presented in 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income as follows: 

Interest Revenue 

Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments and Derivatives - Unrealised 

Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments and Derivatives - Realised 

Total 

Assets 

Loans 
$m 

11,894.0 

(2,017.7) 

2,599.0 

(294.5) 

12,180.8 

296.2 

(1,920.1) 

(393.8) 

(2,017.7) 

S~ ~~ South Australian 
Government 
Flnanclno Authority 

Liabilities 

Bonds, Notes and 
Debentures 

$m 

(234 .6) 

29.0 

20.2 

(185.4) 

(8.0) 

37.0 

29.0 

Total 
$m 

11,659.4 

(1,988.7) 

2,599.0 

(294.5) 

20.2 

11,995.4 

288.2 

(1,883.1) 

(393.8) 

{1,988.7) 

(iv) Level 3 Financial Instruments: Unobservable inputs Used in Measuring Fair Value 

The following table summarises the quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in Level 3 
fair value measurement: 
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Note 29 Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities (continued) 

(b) Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued) 

StA ~~ South Australian 
Government 
Financing Authority 

(iv) Level 3 Financial Instruments: Unobservable Inputs Used in Measuring Fair Value (continued) 

(v) Valuation Processes 

Level 3 fair value valuation processes are consistent with all other valuation processes and are considered as part of 
SAFA's valuation techniques review. 

SAFA considers that its estimates of fair value are appropriate, and while alternative assumptions in relation to 
unobservable inputs could be used when determining fair value, these alternative assumptions would not result in any 
significant changes to measured fair values. 
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Note 29 Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities (continued) 

(c) Non-Financial Assets and Liabilities 

Fair Value Hierarchy 

2023 

Assets 

Assets Held For Sale 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Total 

2022 

Assets 

Assets Held For Sale 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Total 

Note 

5 

10 

Note 

5 

10 

Quoted market 
Market 

price 
observable 

(Level 1) 
inputs 

/Level 21 
$m $m 

5.1 

198.8 

203.9 

Non-financial assets are recorded at cost on acquisition (refer Note 2(k)). 

Sr.A~~ South Australian 
Government 
Financing Authority 

Non-market 
observable 

inputs 
Total 

/Level 31 
$m $m 

5.1 

198.8 

203.9 

SAFA undertook a fair value exercise at the end of the 2022-23 financial year to ensure there were no major 
differences between the stated residual value and the expected sales value for vehicles scheduled to be sold in the 
2023-24 financial year. 

Valuation techniques used to derive the residual value of non-financial assets include: 

- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar assets; and 
- the use of Red Book and Glass valuations for similar motor vehicle assets. 

All of the resulting fair value estimates are included in Level 2. 

All valuation methods remain unchanged compared to the previous reporting period. 
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Note 30 Actuarial Assumptions and Methods 

S~ ~~ SoutllAustraJI.Jn 
Government 
Financing Au!llorlty 

SAFA writes four broad classes of general insurance: Property, Liability, Medical Malpractice and Other Liability. 
In addition, SAFA provides funding for the costs of the SA Government's participation in the National Redress 
Scheme. Products included in these broad classes are detailed below: 

Total Outstanding Claims 

2023 

Expected Future Claims Payments 
(lnflated/Undiscounted) 

Discount to Present Value 

Total Outstanding Claims 

2022 

Expected Future Claims Payments 
(lnflated/Undiscounted) 

Discount to Present Value 

Total Outstanding Claims 

Assumptions 

Central Estimate 

$m 

576.1 

(99.3) 

476.8 

Indirect Claims 
Risk Margin Settlement Margin 

$m $m 

129.9 28.0 

(24.9) (4.4) 

105.0 23.6 

SAFA used the following assumptions in the measurement of its outstanding claims. 

2023 

Average weighted term to settlement - Fund 1 
Average weighted term to settlement - Fund 2 

Average weighted term to settlement - Fund 3 

Average weighted term to settlement - Fund 4 
Percentage risk margin adopted - Fund 1 
Percentage risk margin adopted - Fund 2 
Percentage risk margin adopted - Fund 3 
Percentage risk margin adopted - Fund 4 

Claims handling expense 
Inflation rate (includes superimposed inflation)* 

Discount rate - Fund 1 

Discount rate - Fund 2 

Discount rate - Fund 3 
Discount rate - Fund 4 
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Total 

$m 

734.0 

(128.6) 

605.4 
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Note 30 Actuarial Assumptions and Methods (continued) 

2022 

Average weighted term to settlement - Fund 1 
Average weighted term to settlement - Fund 2 

Average weighted term to settlement - Fund 3 

Average weighted term to settlement - Fund 4 
Percentage risk margin adopted - Fund 1 
Percentage risk margin adopted - Fund 2 
Percentage risk margin adopted - Fund 3 
Percentage risk margin adopted - Fund 4 

Claims handling expense 

Inflation rate (includes superimposed inflation)* 
Discount rate - Fund 1 

Discount rate - Fund 2 
Discount rate - Fund 3 

Discount rate - Fund 4 

Property 

2.15 

5.4% 
18.0% 

4.5% 

3.3% 

3.0% 
0.0% 

Liability 

4.52 

1.81 

3.25 
30.0% 
24.0% 

6.7% 

5.8% 

3.4% 
3.0% 

3.3% 

StA ~~ South Australian 
Government 
Financing Authority 

Medical 
Malpractice 

8.96 

4.70 

35.0% 
26.0% 

4.5% 

5.9% 

3.7% 
3.5% 

Building 
Indemnity 

2.03 

27.5% 

6.0% 

3.3% 

3.0% 

* The valuation methods adopted for Funds 2 and 4 do not have an explicit inflation assumption. Inflation rates 
shown are the adopted rates for Fund 1 and Fund 3. 

The overall risk margin is determined allowing for the uncertainty of the outstanding claims estimate. Uncertainty 
is analysed taking into account potential uncertainties relating to the actuarial models and assumptions, the 
quality of the underlying data used in the models, the general insurance environment, and the impact of legislative 
reform. 

AASB1023 General Insurance Contracts does not prescribe a fixed risk margin or probability of sufficiency. 
However, it is a requirement of the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority guidelines for private sector insurers 
that a minimum of 75% probability of sufficiency be satisfied through the application of the risk margin. Taking 
into account the nature of the risks underwritten by SAFA and distributions regarded as relevant by the industry 
for those risks, the application of the above risk margins by class result in a 75% probability that the provision for 
outstanding claims will be sufficient. The exception is for the liabilities of Fund 4 where no risk margin is held. 

Note 31 Events After the End of the Reporting Period 

No event has arisen since 30 June 2023 that would be likely to materially affect the operations or the state of 
affairs of SAFA. 
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Certification of the Financial Statements 

We certify that the: 

• financial statements of SAFA: 

- are in accordance with the accounts and records of SAFA; 

- comply with relevant Treasurer's Instructions; 

- comply with relevant accounting standards; and 

- present a true and fair view of the financial position of SAFA at the end of the financial year and the result of its 
operations and cash flows for the financial year. 

• internal controls employed by SAFA for the financial year over its financial reporting and its preparation of 
financial statements have been effective. 

Lisa Smith 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER, SAFA 

~ 
Anthony Coates 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, SAFA 

~ 
Rick Persse 
UNDER TREASURER 
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